
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
COUNCIL MEETING – MARCH 19th, 2019 - 4:00 P.M. 

 
The agenda provides start times for committee meeting.  Please note that these times are 
approximate and serve as a guideline only.  We respectfully request all attendees and 
committee members to be in attendance at least 15 minutes prior to the start time for your 
respective committee meeting. 

 

1.      CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. MEMBERS, STAFF AND THE PUBLIC REQUESTED TO TURN OFF ALL 

CELL PHONES AND ELECTRONIC DEVICES 
 

 
3. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
 
4. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

4.1 February 19th, 2019 – Regular Council Meeting PG.4 
 
5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
 
 6. 4:05 GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
 Finance & Admin., Health & Safety, Human Resources 

Chair: G. Campbell     Public Members: S. Humphries 
 

 6.1 Business Arising 
 

6.2 Finance & Administration 
 Staff Reports 
 

6.2.1 Verbal Report – Ministry of Infrastructure  PG.10 
6.2.2 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures PG.12 
6.2.3 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position PG.26 
6.2.4 2018 Audited Financial Statements (Bound Copy 

on desk) PG.27 
6.2.5 Council & Staff Training PG.51 
6.2.6 2019 Tariff of Fees PG.52 
6.2.7 Strategic Assessment Management Policy PG.60 
6.2.8 FCC Agrifund Funding Opportunity PG.71 
6.2.9 Corporate Policy Review – Section B PG.73 

 

6.3 Health & Safety 
6.3.1 Inspection Report – Municipal Office PG.96 
6.3.2 Inspection Report – Public Works Garage PG.98 
6.3.3 Inspection Report – Community Centre PG.103 

 
6.4 Human Resources 
 
6.5 New Business          
 
6.6 Outstanding Business 
 
6.7 Correspondence 
 
6.8 Mayor Bennett - Questions on Report – Recommendations 
 
 

 

1

RETURN TO AGENDA



7. 5:00 REPORTS FROM COMMUNITY COMMITTEES & COUNTY COUNCIL 
  Reports may be provided orally or in written format 
 

7.1 Renfrew & Area Seniors Home Support   T. Webster 
7.2 Community Policing Advisory Committee G. Campbell 
7.3 Health Services Village D. Bennett 
7.4 Chamber of Commerce D. Humphries 
7.5 County Council D. Bennett 

 
8. CONFERENCE REPORTS  
 
9. 5:15 AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS / MINUTES / BUSINESS 
  Reports may be provided orally or in written format 
 

9.1 Economic Development Ad Hoc Committee D. Humphries 
9.2 Recreation Association Ad Hoc Committee D. Humphries 
9.3 Official Plan Review Ad Hoc Committee L. Cleroux 
9.4 Ad Hoc Budget Committee G. Campbell 
9.5 Transportation/Environmental Services Ad Hoc Committee T. Webster 
9.6 Ad Hoc Fire Committee L. Cleroux 
9.7 Ad Hoc Human Resources 

9.7.1 – Minutes from Committee Meeting February 25th, 
2019 

G. Campbell 

PG.112 
9.8 Mayor Bennett - Questions on Report - Recommendations 

 

10. CORRESPONDENCE SUMMARY    

10.1 Information Correspondence  
10.1.1 CAO/Clerk Information Memo PG.113 

  

 10.2 Action Correspondence  
10.2.1 2019 Library Reimbursement Fee PG.114 

  

11. 5:30 SUPPER BREAK 
 
 

12. 6:00 DELEGATIONS &/or PUBLIC MEETINGS 
  

 12.1 OPP INSPECTOR COLIN SLIGHT – PRESENTATION PG.116 
 
13. 6:30 PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
 Chair: L. Cleroux     Public Members: B. Lockwood, J. Wilson 
 

13.1 Staff Reports 
 

13.2 New Business  
 

  13.3 Outstanding Business 
 

 13.4 Correspondence     

13.5 Building Permit Report 
13.5.1 Building Report – February 2019 PG.173 

13.6 Mayor Bennett - Questions on Report - Recommendations 
 
14. OUTSTANDING COMMITTEE ISSUES 
 
15. BY-LAWS 
 

15.1 2019-21 – Amendment to Recycling Contract  PG.174 
15.2 2019-22 – 2019 User Fees & Charges PG.176 

 
16. NOTICE TO FILE MOTION FOR NEXT COUNCIL MEETING 
 

17. COUNCIL MEMBERS CONCERNS 
 

2

RETURN TO AGENDA



18. MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION (debate on motion to reconsider only) 
 

19. IN CAMERA (Closed) SESSION 
 

19.1 Pursuant to Section 239(2) (b) of the Municipal Act,  
 

(b)  Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal 
employees  

 
 

20. NEXT MEETING 
20.1 Next Council Meeting Date:  April 2nd, 2019   

21. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 2019-23 PG.188 
22. ADJOURNMENT 
 

NOTE: Submissions received from the public, either orally or in writing may become  
part of the public record. 

 

3

RETURN TO AGENDA



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 

Regular Council Meeting 
February 19th, 2019 

 

There was a Regular Meeting of Council held in the Township of Horton Council 
Chambers on Tuesday February 19th, 2019.  Present was Mayor David Bennett, 
Deputy Mayor Glen Campbell, Councillor Tom Webster and Councillor Doug 
Humphries.  Staff present was Hope Dillabough, CAO/Clerk, Jennifer Barr, 
Treasurer, Nathalie Moore, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer, and Nichole Dubeau, 
Receptionist/Clerk - Recording Secretary.  
 
Councillor Lane Cleroux sent his regrets. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Bennett called the Meeting to Order at 4:01 pm. 
 
2.  MAYOR BENNETT ASKED THE MEMBERS, STAFF AND PUBLIC TO 

TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES AND ELECTRONIC DEVICES. 
 
 

3. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
4. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 4.1 January 22nd, 2019 – Regular Council Meeting 
  
Moved by Councillor Webster 
Seconded by Deputy Mayor Campbell 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-50 

THAT Council approves the following Meeting Minutes: 
• January 22nd, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 

 Carried 
5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES - None 
  
6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Deputy Mayor Campbell, Chair of the General Government Committee 
presented the following items for consideration and recommendation. 
 
Public Advisory Member Susan Humphries was present. 

 
6.1 Business Arising - None  
  
6.2 Finance & Administration 
 
 6.2.1 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures  

Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Nathalie Moore reviewed the report for Council 
and stated that the OMPF money should be received in the middle of 
March. She noted the recreation events that have passed, and the funds 
have not been received yet, in the office. Councillor Humphries is to 
check in with Tina Hunt about bringing in revenues for the events, in a 
more timely manner.  

  
 6.2.2 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position  

Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Nathalie Moore reviewed the report for council. 
 
6.2.3 Cost of Living Adjustment/Employment By-Law 
CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough reviewed the report for council. 
 
6.2.4 2019 Corporate Policy Review – Section A – Human Resources 
CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough reviewed the report for council. Public 
Advisory Member Susan Humphries pointed out that a couple of the 
policies do not refer to a process if something is not followed, and to add a 
line to refer to the process in Policy A-15. Ms. Dillabough stated that she 
would make those changes. 
 
6.2.5 Credit Cards for Council Members 
CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough reviewed the report for council.  
 
 
 
 

4

RETURN TO AGENDA



6.2.6 Pregnancy and Parental Leave – Council Corporate Policy Council 
-01
CAO/Clerk Ms. Dillabough reviewed the report for council. Mayor Bennett
stated that he would like to see the council leave the same as staff, council
members agreed; therefore, the leave would be unpaid.

6.2.7 Proposed Dental Coverage Amendment 
Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Nathalie Moore reviewed the report for council. 
Councillors agreed on the 75% coverage.  

6.3 Health and Safety 

6.3.1 Inspection Reports – Municipal Office 
The Municipal Office Inspection Report was presented by Ms. Moore. She 
pointed out the flooring in multiple offices is starting lift and are a “slips, 
trips, and falls” hazard. Public Advisory Member Susan Humphries stated 
that since it has been on the report for a few months that it should be 
addressed. Treasurer Barr added that the result was to have all the offices 
carpeted like the front office. Ms. Humphries stated that quotes should be 
brought in to look at. Councillor Webster stated that some offices were 
done at the Town and that he could pass along the information to the 
CAO/Clerk. 

6.3.2 Inspection Reports – Public Works Garage 
The Public Works Garage Inspection Report was presented by Ms. Moore. 

6.3.3 Inspection Report – Community Centre 
The Community Centre Inspection Report was presented by Ms. Moore. 
There was brief discussion regarding the upgrade of tables and that the 
budgeted funds were still available. 

6.4 Human Resources 

6.4.1 Acting Fire Chief Appointment 
Deputy Mayor Campbell reviewed the report to council and added that 
Councillor Cleroux was aware of the report coming forward in his absence. 

6.5 New Business – None 

6.6 Outstanding Business – None 

6.7 Correspondence 

6.8 Questions on Reports and Recommendations –Mayor Bennett 
There were no additional questions on the reports. 

Moved by Deputy Mayor Campbell 
Seconded by Councillor Webster 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-51 

THAT THAT Council receive the Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and 
the Consolidated Financial Statement dated February 15th, 2019. 

Carried 

Moved by Councillor Webster 
Seconded by Councillor Humphries 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-52 

THAT Council accept Corporate Policies A-06 through A17 (with the exception 
of A-10 Staffing reviewed and updated in 2018) as reviewed and updated by 
Staff; 

AND FURTHER THAT once a comprehensive review of Section A of the 
Corporate Policies is deemed complete, it be brought forward by By-Law to be 
adopted into the Township of Horton’s Corporate Policies. 

Carried 

5

RETURN TO AGENDA



Moved by Deputy Mayor Campbell 
Seconded by Councillor Webster 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-53 

THAT Council, upon recommendation of the General Government Committee 
agree to provide Council Members, of this term of Council, with a Township 
credit card. 

Carried 

Moved by Councillor Humphries 
Seconded by Councillor Webster 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-54 

THAT Council amends the current dental coverage to move from Level III 
(Dentures) to 75% effective March 1st, 2019. 

Carried 

Moved by Councillor Humphries 
Seconded by Councillor Webster 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-55 

THAT Council receive the Health and Safety Inspection Checklists completed 
for the Public Works Garage, Community Centre Buildings and the Municipal 
Office. 

Carried 

Moved by Deputy Mayor Campbell 
Seconded by Councillor Humphries 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-56 

THAT Council, upon the retirement of the Fire Chief effective February 28th, 
2019, agree to appoint Deputy Fire Chief Allan Cole as Acting Fire Chief; 
AND FURTHER THAT he be paid at the Fire Chief’s monthly stipend; 
AND FURTHER THAT the Fire Chief position be posted internally as per 
Human Resource Policy A-10.  

Carried 

7. REPORTS FROM COMMUNITY COMMITTEES & COUNTY COUNCIL

7.1 Renfrew & Area Seniors Home Support
Councillor Webster stated that he was impressed with the board and the
programs that were run.

7.2 Community Policing Advisory Committee
Mayor Campbell contacted Christina Mulcahey from McNab/Braeside to
see if they would be interested in a meeting. He also contacted OPP
Inspector Colin Slight who said he was open to talk again to everyone.
Deputy Mayor Campbell mentioned that he still needed to contact the other
three municipalities. CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough added that she could
send an e-mail to everyone involved and see about setting something up.

7.3 Health Services Village
Mayor Bennett stated that there was no new business.

7.4 Chamber of Commerce
Councillor Humphries reviewed briefly for council members. He focused
on the upcoming Home and Garden show at Mat-e-Way which is 75% sold
out already.

7.5 County Council
Mayor Bennett stated that he would like to start sending the County Council
agendas to each member so they can look at what is being discussed and
they can let Mayor Bennett know which topics they would like to hear about
afterwards.

Moved by Councillor Webster  
Seconded by Councillor Humphries  

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-57 

THAT Council receive the reports from Community Committees and County 
Council.  

Carried 

8. CONFERENCE REPORTS – None

9. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/MINUTES/BUSINESS

6

RETURN TO AGENDA



 
9.1 Economic Development Ad Hoc Committee  

Councillor Humphries reported that he will be meeting with 
Community Liaison Officer Shane Lambert to see what other 
municipalities are doing for their development. Mayor Bennett 
added that when a list of businesses in the Township is made, he 
would like to look at it to make sure there are none left out.  

      
 9.2 Recreation Association Ad Hoc Committee  

Councillor Humphries reported that the committee has been 
focusing on the Winter Carnival and the Horton Hoedown.  

 
9.3 Official Plan Review Ad Hoc Committee  

  There was no update. 
 

9.4 Ad Hoc Budget Committee  
  9.4.1 - Minutes from Public Meeting January 30th, 2019 

Deputy Mayor Campbell reviewed the minutes from the meeting. He 
added that the budget would be passed at the April 2nd regular 
council meeting.  

  
9.5 Transportation/Env. Services Ad Hoc Committee  
 9.5.1 – Minutes from Meeting February 12th, 2019 

Councillor Webster reviewed the minutes of the meeting for council 
members. He pointed out that there will be a meeting with 
Greenview Environmental on March 14th, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. 

 
9.6 Ad Hoc Fire Committee  
  
9.7 Ad Hoc Human Resources  
 There was no update. Deputy Mayor Campbell stated that he 

would like to set up a meeting date with Public Advisory Member 
Susan Humphries, and the CAO/Clerk in the near future.  

 
9.8 Questions on Reports and Recommendations – Mayor Bennett 

There were no additional questions on the reports 

 
10. CORRESPONDENCE SUMMARY 
  

10.1 Information Correspondence  
 

10.1.1 CAO/Clerk Information Memo  
Mayor Bennett went around the table asking Council members for 
comments.  Members briefly reviewed and discussed the information. 
Mayor Bennett asked that a congratulatory letter be sent to Ottawa Valley 
Recreational Trail Partners Group regarding the Lieutenant Governor’s 
General Award. 
 

 
10.2 Action Correspondence 

10.2.1 Request for Support – Town of Petawawa Cannabis Resolution 
Council members reviewed and agreed to support. 

 
 

Moved by Deputy Mayor Campbell 
Seconded by Councillor Cleroux 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-58 

THAT    Council accept the following Ad Hoc Committee Minutes: 
• Ad Hoc Budget Committee - January 30th, 2019 – Public Meeting 
• Ad Hoc TES Committee – February 12th, 2019 

 Carried 

Moved by Councillor Humphries 
Seconded by Councillor Webster 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-59 

THAT Council accepts the Information Correspondence list as per the 
CAO/Clerk’s Information Memo for February 19th, 2019. 
 Carried 

7

RETURN TO AGENDA



Moved by Deputy Mayor Campbell 
Seconded by Councillor Humphries 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-60 

THAT Council of the Township of Horton support the Town of Petawawa’s 
Resolution passed at their February 4th, 2019 Council meeting which includes 
a recommendation to contact the Province of Ontario to request amendments 
to the Cannabis legislation when the Province revisits the legislation in 
December 2019.  

AND THAT this Resolution of Support be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford, MPP 
John Yakabuski and the Town of Petawawa. 

 Carried 
 

 
11. SUPPER BREAK AT 5:30 P.M. 
 RECONVENED AT 5:55 P.M. 
 
12. DELEGATIONS &/or PUBLIC MEETINGS 
   
13. PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
13.1  Staff Reports – None  
    
13.2  New Business – None 
 

 13.3 Outstanding Business – None 
 

13.4 Correspondence – None 
 
13.5 Building Permit Report – None  
  
13.6    Questions on Reports and Recommendations – Mayor Bennett 

  There were no additional questions on the reports. 
 
14. OUTSTANDING COMMITTEE ISSUES – None  
 
15. BY-LAWS 
 

15.1 2019-013 – Employment By-Law 
15.2 2019-13 – Appoint Integrity Commissioner and Closed Meeting 

Investigator 
15.3 2019-14 – Adopt Policy Council-01 Parental and Pregnancy Leave 

 
Moved by Councillor Webster 
Seconded by Councillor Humphries  

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-61 

THAT Council enact the following By-Laws: 
 

• 2019-12 Employment By-Law for Township Officers and Staff 
• 2019-13 By-Law to Appoint an Integrity Commissioner and Closed 

Meeting Investigator 
• 2019-14 By-Law to Adopt Corporate Policy Council-01 – Council 

Pregnancy and Parental Leave – as amended to reflect unpaid leave 
 Carried 

 
16. NOTICE TO FILE MOTION FOR NEXT COUNCIL MEETING 
   
17. COUNCIL MEMBERS CONCERNS  

Councillor Webster mentioned that he visited the CNL facilities and that it 
was very impressive to see. He added that all the councillors should take 
the time to make an appointment and go see it. Mayor Bennett mentioned 
the Thomsonhill Cemetery Board is having a meeting on March 7th and 
would like some members of council to attend if they could. 

 
18. MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION – None 
 

8

RETURN TO AGENDA



19. IN CAMERA (CLOSED) SESSION – None  
 
20. NEXT MEETING 
 

20.1 Next Council Meeting will be held Tuesday March 5th, 2019 at 4:00 
pm 

 
21. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 
 
Moved by Deputy Mayor Campbell 
Seconded by Councillor Humphries  

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-62 

THAT Council enact By-Law 2019-15 – Confirming By-Law 
 Carried 

22. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Mayor Bennett declared the Meeting to be adjourned at 6:17 pm. 
 
 
 
 

   
MAYOR David M. Bennett  CAO/CLERK Hope Dillabough 

 

9

RETURN TO AGENDA



From: Minister of Infrastructure <Minister.MOI@ontario.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2019 11:42 AM
Subject: Message from the Minister of Infrastructure / Un message du Ministre de l'Infrastructure

Dear Mayor/Chief:

As the Minister of Infrastructure, I would like to provide an update about some important 
actions our government is taking to ensure we provide predictable, secure infrastructure 
funding to address community needs, while reducing the administrative burden on local 
governments.

As part of this plan, I am pleased to announce the launch of the first stage of the Investing 
in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) in Ontario. The ICIP is a 10-year federal-provincial 
infrastructure program that will invest up to $30 billion in combined federal, provincial and 
other partner funding to critical local and regional infrastructure needs. The program will 
support public transit, green, community, culture and recreation, and rural and northern 
infrastructure investments. It will bring major infrastructure investments to communities 
across Ontario. It will grow our economy, ensuring Ontario is open for business and open 
for jobs. By leveraging funding from the federal government, the ICIP will help us deliver on 
our commitment to a balanced, fiscally-responsible plan that includes smart infrastructure 
investments and meets the needs of the people.

I am pleased to announce that the first intake for the ICIP, the Rural and Northern stream, 
will launch in days. An intake for the remaining Public Transit stream will open in the 
coming weeks, while intakes for the Community, Culture and Recreation stream and Green 
stream will launch later this year.

In cooperation with my colleague the Honourable Ernie Hardeman, Minister of Agriculture, 
Food and Rural Affairs, the initial intake of the Rural and Northern stream will open on 
March 18, 2019. Communities will have up to eight weeks to submit applications for 
provincial review and nomination to the federal government. 

This intake will prioritize projects that improve transportation infrastructure through 
investments in road, bridge, air and/or marine infrastructure. Municipalities and First 
Nations with populations of 100,000 or less will be eligible to apply. Projects that will be 
considered must have a total cost of less than $5 million, though municipalities and First 
Nations could submit joint applications for larger projects, such as shared county roads.

Future intakes may prioritize other specific asset types eligible under ICIP, like broadband. 
More information about the Rural and Northern stream can be found at:
www.grants.gov.on.ca/GrantsPortal/en, by clicking on Grant Opportunities.

10

RETURN TO AGENDA



I would also like to provide an update on the Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund. As 
you may be aware, the government committed, through a recent line-by-line review, to 
make all government spending more effective. As a first step, we will be confirming the 2019 
OCIF formula allocations with eligible communities, with formula funding confirmed at$200 
million for 2019. Moving forward, the province will be undertaking a re-design of the Ontario 
Community Infrastructure Fund (OCIF) to ensure funding is targeted to where it is needed 
most. Our government will work with the Association of Municipalities of Ontario and 
municipalities to develop this re-focused OCIF.

Projects that were submitted to the 2018 top-up application intake were reviewed and 
evaluated based on the criteria outlined in the program guidelines. While no funding will be 
provided through the 2018 OCIF application intake, it is our intent to nominate a number of 
road and bridge projects – that would have been successful under the program – for federal 
funding under the Rural and Northern stream on an accelerated basis. Nomination is 
subject to municipal agreement and the submission of further information to ensure 
compliance with federal eligibility criteria. Ministry officials will be in contact shortly to 
provide a more detailed update on the OCIF and to outline next steps for those 
municipalities whose ICIP applications will be fast-tracked.

Thank you for your support as we continue to fund better infrastructure for the people, 
making smarter infrastructure investments throughout all municipalities and Indigenous 
communities across Ontario. I look forward to working with you to invest in and address the 
infrastructure needs of your community. 

Sincerely,

[original signed by]

Monte McNaughton
Minister of Infrastructure

c:        The Honourable Ernie Hardeman, Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs
 The Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing

Confidentiality Warning: This e-mail contains information intended only for the use of the individual 
names above. If you have received this e-mail in error, we would appreciate it if you could advise us 
through the Minister’s website at www.ontario.ca/page/ministry-infrastructure and destroy all copies 
of this message. Thank you.

11

RETURN TO AGENDA



12

RETURN TO AGENDA



13

RETURN TO AGENDA



14

RETURN TO AGENDA



15

RETURN TO AGENDA



16

RETURN TO AGENDA



17

RETURN TO AGENDA



18

RETURN TO AGENDA



19

RETURN TO AGENDA



20

RETURN TO AGENDA



21

RETURN TO AGENDA



22

RETURN TO AGENDA



23

RETURN TO AGENDA



24

RETURN TO AGENDA



25

RETURN TO AGENDA



26

RETURN TO AGENDA



27

RETURN TO AGENDA



28

RETURN TO AGENDA



29

RETURN TO AGENDA



30

RETURN TO AGENDA



31

RETURN TO AGENDA



32

RETURN TO AGENDA



33

RETURN TO AGENDA



34

RETURN TO AGENDA



35

RETURN TO AGENDA



36

RETURN TO AGENDA



37

RETURN TO AGENDA



38

RETURN TO AGENDA



39

RETURN TO AGENDA



40

RETURN TO AGENDA



41

RETURN TO AGENDA



42

RETURN TO AGENDA



43

RETURN TO AGENDA



44

RETURN TO AGENDA



45

RETURN TO AGENDA



46

RETURN TO AGENDA



47

RETURN TO AGENDA



48

RETURN TO AGENDA



49

RETURN TO AGENDA



50

RETURN TO AGENDA



51

RETURN TO AGENDA



52

RETURN TO AGENDA



53

RETURN TO AGENDA



54

RETURN TO AGENDA



55

RETURN TO AGENDA



56

RETURN TO AGENDA



57

RETURN TO AGENDA



58

RETURN TO AGENDA



59

RETURN TO AGENDA



60

RETURN TO AGENDA



61

RETURN TO AGENDA



62

RETURN TO AGENDA



63

RETURN TO AGENDA



64

RETURN TO AGENDA



65

RETURN TO AGENDA



66

RETURN TO AGENDA



67

RETURN TO AGENDA



68

RETURN TO AGENDA



69

RETURN TO AGENDA



70

RETURN TO AGENDA



71

RETURN TO AGENDA



72

RETURN TO AGENDA



73

RETURN TO AGENDA



74

RETURN TO AGENDA



75

RETURN TO AGENDA



76

RETURN TO AGENDA



77

RETURN TO AGENDA



78

RETURN TO AGENDA



79

RETURN TO AGENDA



80

RETURN TO AGENDA



81

RETURN TO AGENDA



82

RETURN TO AGENDA



83

RETURN TO AGENDA



84

RETURN TO AGENDA



85

RETURN TO AGENDA



86

RETURN TO AGENDA



87

RETURN TO AGENDA



88

RETURN TO AGENDA



89

RETURN TO AGENDA



90

RETURN TO AGENDA



91

RETURN TO AGENDA



92

RETURN TO AGENDA



93

RETURN TO AGENDA



94

RETURN TO AGENDA



95

RETURN TO AGENDA



 

DATE: March 14, 2019 PERSON INSPECTING: Nathalie Moore 
LOCATION: Municipal Office WEATHER: 2°C 

 
1. WALKING SURFACES 

 YES NO ACTION 
WALKWAYS FREE OF OBSTRUCTION    
SURFACES IN GOOD CONDITION    
TRIP/SLIP HAZARDS   Torn flooring still an issue 

 
2. ENVIRONMENT 

 YES NO ACTION 
LIGHTING ADEQUATE    
NOISE LEVELS    
AIR QUALITY    
TEMPERATURE & HUMIDITY    
CLEANLINESS / HOUSEKEEPING    
HAZARDS PRESENT?    
CLEANING COMPOUNDS PRESENT?    
CLEANING COMPOUNDS LABELLED    
MSDS BOOK AVAILABLE & CURRENT    
SAFETY SIGNAGE    

 
3. OFFICE EQUIPMENT 

 YES NO ACTION 
GOOD MECHANICAL CONDITION    
SECURE FROM TIPPING    
FREE OF SHARPE EDGES    
PROPER ASSEMBLY / ADJUSTMENT    
EMERGENCY DEVICES ACCESSIBLE    
SAFE HANDLING PROCEDURES    
ELECTRICAL CORDS SECURED    
PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE    

 
4. BOOKCASES/CABINETS 

 YES NO ACTION 
GOOD CONDITION    
SECURED    
DRAWERS CLOSED WHEN NOT IN USE    
SAFE STORAGE / STACKING / PILING    
STEP STOOLS / LADDERS AVAILABLE    
HEAVY ITEMS LOCATION   STORAGE ROOMS 

 
5. FIRST AID 

 YES NO ACTION 
AVAILABILITY OF FIRST AID KIT    
REGULATION 1101    
CERTIFICATES POSTED    
INSPECTION CHECKLIST    
LOG BOOK AVAILABLE    

 

96

RETURN TO AGENDA



6. FIRE PROTECTION 
 YES NO ACTION 
FIRE EXTINGUISHERS AVAILABLE    
ACCESSIBILITY    
MONTHLY / YEARLY INSPECTIONS    
FIRE EXITS SIGNED / LIGHTED    
FIRE EXITS CLEAR    

 
7. HEALTH & SAFETY BOARD 

 YES NO ACTION 
WSIB FORM 82    
ESA POSTER VERSION 3.0    
OH&S ACT AND REGULATIONS    
WSIB “WHAT’S IN IT FOR YOU” FORM    
POLICY STATEMENT    
NAMES OF TRAINED FIRST AIDERS    

 
8. TRAINING 

 YES NO ACTION 
WHMIS / FIRST AID    
EMERGENCY PROCEDURES    
SECURITY PROCEDURES    
TRAINING RECORDS    

 
9. EMPLOYEE CONTACT/OTHER 

 YES NO ACTION 
KNOWLEDGE OF H&S POLICY    
KNOWLEDGE OF H&S BOARD    
KNOWLEDGE OF MSDS    
KNOWLEDGE OF/USE OF EQUIPMENT    
KNOWLEDGE OF SECURITY POLICY    
KNOWLEDGE OF REPORTING DUTIES    

 
NOTES / OBSERVATIONS: 

- Layman Fire Services were in to inspect all extinguishers, and everything was said to be in working order. 
- A flooring quote has been requested to redo 3 offices with carpet tiles. 

 
 
 
 
FOLLOW UP: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

97

RETURN TO AGENDA



98

RETURN TO AGENDA



99

RETURN TO AGENDA



100

RETURN TO AGENDA



101

RETURN TO AGENDA



102

RETURN TO AGENDA



The Township of Horton Inspection Checklist 
                       Community Centre 

    
Date:  March 12, 2019 ______ Person Inspection: Shane Lambert. 
 
Location___Community Centre_______  Weather    
 
Front Entrance Exterior/Interior Foyer 
 
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction   Water still pooling at front entrance and cement 

pad when it rains. 
Surfaces in good condition x   
Trip/slip hazards  x  
Warnings near hazards x   
Extension cords/ Rocks x   
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate x   
Noise levels  x   
Air quality x   
Temperature and Humidity x   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping 
Mats  
Exterior Doors  

x  
 
 

 

Hazards present?  x  
 
3. Fire Protection   Yes No  Action 
Fire extinguishers available x   
Accessibility x   
Monthly/Yearly inspections x   
Fire exits signed/lighted x   
Fire exits clear x   
Fire doors? x   
 
Upper Storage Room above front Foyer 
 
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction x   
Surfaces in good condition x   
Trip/slip hazards  x  
Warnings near hazards    
 
 
 
 
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 

103

RETURN TO AGENDA



Lighting adequate x   

Noise levels  x   
Air quality x   
Temperature and Humidity x   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping x   
Hazards present?  x  
 
3.  Equipment   Yes No  Action 
Good mechanical condition X   
Secure from tipping X   
Free of sharp edges X   
Proper assembly/adjustment X   
Emergency devices accessible X   
 
4. Fire Protection   Yes No  Action 
Fire extinguishers available x   
Accessibility x   
Monthly/Yearly inspections x   
Fire exits signed/lighted x   
Fire exits clear x   
Fire doors? x   
 
4. Bookcases/Cabinets  Yes No  Action 
Good condition x   
Secured x   
Safe storage/Stacking/Piling x   
Step stools/ladders available x   
Heavy items location?  x  
 
Community Centre Hall 
 
1. Walking Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction x   
Surfaces in good condition x   
Trip/slip hazards  x  
Warnings near hazards    
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate x   1 ceiling light out near stairs Will wait to replace. 
Noise levels  x   
Air quality x   
Temperature and Humidity x   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping x    
Hazards present?  x  
Safety signage x   
 
3. Office  Equipment  Yes No  Action 

104

RETURN TO AGENDA



Tables - 31 total    
Good mechanical condition  x   
Secure from tipping x   
Free of sharp edges x  7 tables have some damage to corners/sharpness  
Chairs    
Good mechanical condition x  Chairs Need new rubber feet. On order as of March 

12, 2019 
Secure from tipping x   
Free of sharp edges x   
Proper assembly/adjustment x   
STAGE    
Good mechanical condition x   
Free of sharp edges x  . 
Proper assembly/adjustment x   
Preventative maintenance    
Stage drapes new June 15, 
2016 

x   

Doors    
Seal tight and lock secure x   
Chair Lift     
In good operating condition x   
Up to date inspection x   
Defective parts or Hazards     
 
 
5. First Aid     Yes No  Action 
AED – External defibrillator  x   Inspected Jan 13th  

Battery to be replaced. On order 
AED – active light blinking x   
Availability of first aid kit Posted x   
Regulation 1101 x   
Certificates posted x   
Log book available x   
 
6. Fire Protection   Yes No  Action 
Fire extinguishers available x   
Accessibility x   
Monthly/Yearly inspections x   
Fire exits signed/lighted x   
Fire exits clear x   
Fire doors? x   
 
7. Health and Safety Board Yes  No  Action 
WSIB Form 82 x   
ESA poster version 3.0 x   
OH&S Act and Regulations x   
WSIB “What’s in it for you” form x   

105

RETURN TO AGENDA



Names of trained First Aiders  x   
 
8. Training    Yes No  Action 
WHMIS/First aid x   
Emergency Procedures    
Security Procedures     
Special training    
 
Kitchen 
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction X   
Surfaces in good condition X   
Trip/slip hazards  X  
Warnings near hazards    
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate X   
Noise levels  X   
Air quality X   
Temperature and Humidity X   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping X   
Hazards present?  x  
Cleaning compounds present? X   
Cleaning compounds labelled X   
Safety signage X   
 
3. Equipment    Yes No  Action 
Counters    
Good mechanical condition  X   
Secure from tipping X   
Free of sharp edges X   
Proper assembly/adjustment X   
Cupboards    
Good mechanical condition X   
Clear of Clutter above X   
Free of sharp edges X   
Proper assembly/adjustment X   
Fridge/Freezers    
Good mechanical condition X   
Secure from tipping X   
Free of sharp edges X   
Thermometers present X   
Preventative maintenance X   
Defective parts identified    
STOVE/ /HOOD    
In good operating condition X   
Up to date inspection X  Inspected March 8th 2019 

106

RETURN TO AGENDA



Defective parts or Hazards 
identified 

   

Notes:  outside - Have Maintenance check the Kitchen Hood Ventilation System foil 
between the Duct work, it appears faded from the sun and small pin holes appearing. 
May need replacing.   
 
5. First Aid     Yes No  Action 
Availability of first aid kit  X  In Kitchen Cupboard above 

hand washing sink.  
Regulation 1101 X   
Inspection checklist X   
Log book available X   
 
6. Fire Protection   Yes No  Action 
Fire extinguishers available X   
Accessibility X   
Monthly/Yearly inspections X   
Fire exits signed/lighted X   
Fire exits clear X   
Fire doors? X   
 
Utility Room 
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction X   
Surfaces in good condition X   
Trip/slip hazards  X  
Warnings near hazards    
Extension cords/ Rocks    
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate X    
Noise levels  X   
Air quality X   
Temperature and Humidity X   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping X   
Hazards present?  x  
Cleaning compounds present? X   
Cleaning compounds labelled X   
Safety signage X   
 
  Equipment                        Yes No  Action 
Water heater    New Sept 2016 
Good mechanical condition  X  Water Filter was changed Feb 

15, 2018 
Secure from tipping X   
Proper assembly/adjustment    
FLOOR CLEANER  x  

107

RETURN TO AGENDA



Good mechanical condition  x   
Furnace x  Filter changed Dec 2018 
Good mechanical condition x   
Clear of Clutter above X   
Free of sharp edges X   
Proper assembly/adjustment X   
Preventative maintenance X   
Defective parts identified    
Furnace vent    
In good operating condition X   
Up to date inspection X   
Defective parts or Hazards 
identified 

   

Men’s Room 
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction X   
Surfaces in good condition X   
Trip/slip hazards  x  
Warnings near hazards    
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate X   
Noise levels  X   
Air quality X   
Temperature and Humidity X   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping X   
Hazards present? X   
Cleaning compounds present?  X  
Safety signage X   
3. Equipment       Yes No  Action 
Toilets/Urinals    
Good mechanical condition x    
Secure from tipping X   

Sinks    
Good mechanical condition X   
Secure from tipping X   
Doors    
Good mechanical condition X   
Emergency devices accessible X   
Notes:  
 
Ladies Room 
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction X   
Surfaces in good condition X   
Trip/slip hazards  x  
 

108

RETURN TO AGENDA



 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate X   
Noise levels  X   
Air quality X   
Temperature and Humidity X   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping X   
Hazards present?  X  
Cleaning compounds present?  X  
Safety signage X   
 
3. Equipment       Yes No  Action 
Toilets    
Good mechanical condition X   
Secure from tipping X   
Defective parts identified    
Proper assembly/adjustment    
Sinks    
Good mechanical condition X   
Secure from tipping X   
Defective parts identified    
Proper assembly/adjustment    
Doors    
Good mechanical condition X   
Emergency devices accessible X   
Defective parts identified    
Proper assembly/adjustment    
 
BAR –  
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction X   
Surfaces in good condition X   
Trip/slip hazards  x  
Warnings near hazards x   
 
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate x   
Noise levels  x   
Air quality  x  
Temperature and Humidity x   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping x    
Hazards present? x    
Cleaning compounds present?  x  
Cleaning compounds labelled  x  
Safety signage x   
Liquor licence visible & up to date x   

109

RETURN TO AGENDA



 
3. Equipment       Yes No  Action 
Sink    
Good mechanical condition x   
Defective parts identified    
Fridges/Freezer    
Good mechanical condition x   
Secure from tipping x   
Defective parts identified    
Thermometers present x   
Notes: 
 
Upper Meeting Room 
1.Walking  Surfaces   Yes No   Action  
Walkways free of obstruction X   
Surfaces in good condition X   
Trip/slip hazards    
Warnings near hazards    
 
2. Environment   Yes  No  Action 
Lighting adequate x   
Noise levels  X   
Air quality X   
Temperature and Humidity X   
Cleanliness/Housekeeping X   
Hazards present? x   
Cleaning compounds present?  X  
Safety signage x   
 
3. Equipment       Yes No  Action 
Tables    
Good mechanical condition X   
Defective parts identified    
Chairs    
Good mechanical condition X   
Secure from tipping X   
Defective parts identified    
Games    
Good mechanical condition X   
Secure from tipping X  Bruce Golden Inspected games, and 

made a few adjustments. 
DOORS/ Accessibility    
Good mechanical condition X   
Defective parts identified    
Windows     
Good mechanical condition X   
 

110

RETURN TO AGENDA



4. Fire Protection   Yes No  Action 
Fire extinguishers available X   
Accessibility X   
Monthly/Yearly inspections X   
Fire exits signed/lighted x    
Fire exits clear X   
Fire doors? X   
 
Completed by: Shane Lambert Community Liaison Officer 
Date: March 12th 2019 
Submitted: -   CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough 

111

RETURN TO AGENDA



        THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
Ad-Hoc Human Resources Committee  

February 25th, 2019 
 
There was a Meeting of the Ad Hoc Human Resources Committee held in the Municipal 
Council Chamber on Monday February 25th, 2019 for the purpose of discussing Office 
structure. Present was Chair Glen Campbell, Mayor David Bennett, Public Advisory Member 
Human Resources Susan Humphries.  Staff present was CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
  

Chair Campbell called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
2. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
  

None declared 
 
3. OFFICE STRUCTURE 

 
CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough reviewed her report for the Committee.  The Committee 
reviewed and discussed the Office structure due to the impending retirement of the 
Treasurer/Tax Collector.  It was determined that the CAO/Clerk will provide a report to 
Council at the March 5th Council meeting for information.  Subsequently, an internal 
posting of the Receptionist/Clerk position be posted and depending on receipt of 
applications, it be externally posted.   
 

 
4. NEXT MEETING 

None Scheduled.  
 
5. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Campbell adjourned the meeting at 10:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
              
Chairperson Glen Campbell   Hope Dillabough, CAO/Clerk 

112

RETURN TO AGENDA



 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
Memo from the CAO/Clerk as of Friday March 15, 2019 

 
INFORMATION provided NOT included in the 

Regular Council meeting package of March 19, 2019 
 
 

INFORMATION EMAILED 
  

1. Health Unit Media Release  
2. Algonquin Park Work Schedule Inspection  
3. Renfrew Foodbank Thank-You Letter  
4. Family and Children’s Service Board of Directors   
5. Renfrew County Farm News  
6. OPP Weekly News  
7. County of Renfrew Load Restrictions  
8. AMO Policy Update – Rural & Northern Infrastructure Projects  
9. Invitation to Essentials Course  

10. OGRA Connect  
11. Community Economic Development 101  
12. Calendars  

 

113

RETURN TO AGENDA



114

RETURN TO AGENDA



115

RETURN TO AGENDA



Introduction to Renfrew 
Detachment

116

RETURN TO AGENDA



Objectives

Social
Development

Prevention

• Renfrew Detachment - Area & Structure
• OPP Strategic Plan & Detachment Action Plan
• OPP Billing Model
• Community Safety & Wellbeing Planning

117

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

Detachment Area & Structure

Contract Locations
Town of Renfrew
Admaston Bromley

Non Contract Locations
Town of Arnprior
McNab Breaside
Horton
Whitewater Region
Greater Madawaska

118

RETURN TO AGENDA



Prevention

Detachment Area & Structure

Renfrew Detachment
410 O’Brien Road,
Renfrew, ON K7V 3Z2
613-432-3211

Insp Colin Slight
Detachment Commander

S/Sgt MaryAnn MacNeil
Operations Manager

To report a life threatening emergency or to report a crime in progress call 911.
For non-emergency calls for service, contact the OPP at 1-888-310-1122

119

RETURN TO AGENDA



Prevention

Detachment Area & Structure
Detachment 
Commander

Operations 
Manager

A Platoon B Platoon C Platoon D Platoon

HSD Unit

Admin 
Supervisor

Admin 
Support

Court 
Services

Regional Crime & OCEB 
Oversight

CSCUCrime Unit

Uniform Officers – 56
Special Constable – 1
Auxiliary Unit - 12
Civilian Staff – 5
Guard/Matrons - 6

120

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Strategic Plan
121

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Strategic Plan
Leadership

Building trust and confidence through our actions and 
words

Healthy Workforce
Cultivating and sustaining a supportive work culture

Technology
Integrating service delivery opportunities to enhance 

productivity
Analytical

Maximize data to deploy resources
Reinvestment

Increase capacity in growing service areas

122

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

Renfrew Detachment Action Plan

• Focused Patrols
• CSCU
• Big Four Focus
• Collaborative Response to Mental Health

Engagement – who can we engage to assist with the identified concern 
Education – what can we do to educate the public on the issue
Enforcement – What role does enforcement play as part of the solution

123

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

Renfrew Detachment Action Plan

2018 Year-end Statistics

124

RETURN TO AGENDA



Questions?

Social
Development

Prevention

125

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model

In response to the Auditor General’s recommendations and 
based on feedback obtained from municipalities during the 
municipal engagement, MCSCS and OPP introduced a new OPP 
billing model in 2015.

The new model is based on the principle that, in addition to 
responding to reactive calls for service , all police services require 
a base level of infrastructure, supervision, administration and 
sufficient front-line policing to provide adequate proactive 
policing. As such, the OPP billing model calculates municipal 
police costs based on three categories:

126

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model

Base 
Service Costs

60%

Call for 
Service 
Costs
40%

+ Enhancements

127

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model

• Base Level Services: estimate annually the total cost of 
basic policing services provided to municipalities, and 
allocate among municipalities on an equal per property 
basis. Base Level Services include:
o Supervisor positions – Inspector, Staff Sergeant, 

Sergeant.
o Administrative positions – detachment administration, 

clerks, caretaker, etc.
o Constables – portion for time spent performing 

training, administration and proactive activities, such 
as patrol, RIDE, crime prevention, etc.

o Support and ODOE – a portion of vehicles, 
communications, uniform, equipment, etc.

128

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model

• Calls for Service: estimate annually the cost of reacting to 
calls for service and allocate the costs to municipalities 
based on their individual usage level. Examples of calls for 
service include: 
o Crime calls (assaults, break & enter, mischief, drug 

offences, etc.)
o Provincial Statutes (Mental Health Act, Trespass to 

Property Act, landlord/tenant disputes, etc.)
o Motor vehicle collisions (property damage, personal 

injury, fatal, etc.)
o General calls for service (false alarms, lost property, 

missing person, etc.)

129

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model

• Contract Enhancements: In addition to base and calls for 
service costs, contract municipalities have the option to 
request additional, dedicated FTEs above the OPP 
“minimum standard”. These are billed directly to the 
municipality requesting them. 

130

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model
131

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model
132

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model
133

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model
134

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model
135

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model
136

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model
137

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model

Total Weighted Time   X   actual hourly wage/benefits  = CFS Cost

138

RETURN TO AGENDA



Social
Development

Prevention

OPP Billing Model

• Billing is based on a cost recovery basis

• Reconciliation is completed for the previous year by September 30th . 

• Costing estimate for the following year is issues at the same time as well.

139

RETURN TO AGENDA



Questions?

Social
Development

Prevention

140

RETURN TO AGENDA



Community Policing

Up to this point in history, community policing has 
been about things police can, or should, do differently 
in order to achieve the goals of community safety.  

In recent years, community policing has shifted its 
focus to what the rest of the community can do to 
achieve these goals – this is, community policing.1

1 - Russell - 2017

141

RETURN TO AGENDA



Community Policing

Traditional Policing Community Policing

Police solely responsible Collaborative

Incident-driven Risk-driven

Reactive Proactive

Speedy response Timeliness of intervention

Investigative Supportive

Minimizing harms Preventing harms

Arrests and prosecutions Problem-solving

142

RETURN TO AGENDA



1972 2012

143

RETURN TO AGENDA



Cost of 
Policing

Cost of 
Community 
Safety and 
Well-being

Community Policing
144

RETURN TO AGENDA



1972 2012

Community Policing
145

RETURN TO AGENDA



1972 2012

Community Policing
146

RETURN TO AGENDA



Crime Prevention in OntarioCommunity Policing
147

RETURN TO AGENDA



Po
ve

rty

Community Policing
148

RETURN TO AGENDA



Po
ve

rty

Ad
di

ct
io

n 
Is

su
es

Community Policing
149

RETURN TO AGENDA



Po
ve

rty

Ad
di

ct
io

n 
Is

su
es

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 Is
su

es

Community Policing
150

RETURN TO AGENDA



Po
ve

rty

Ad
di

ct
io

n 
Is

su
es

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 Is
su

es

N
eg

at
iv

e 
Pa

re
nt

in
g 

In
flu

en
ce

s

Community Policing
151

RETURN TO AGENDA



Po
ve

rty

Ad
di

ct
io

n 
Is

su
es

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 Is
su

es

N
eg

at
iv

e 
Pa

re
nt

in
g 

In
flu

en
ce

s

Po
or

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t

Community Policing
152

RETURN TO AGENDA



Community Safety & Well-being Planning

153

RETURN TO AGENDA



Police Services Act

Municipal community safety and well-being plan 
• 143 (1) Every municipal council shall prepare and, by 

resolution, adopt a community safety and well-being plan. 

May be prepared individually or jointly 
• (2) The community safety and well-being plan may be 

prepared by the municipal council individually or jointly in 
consultation with other municipal councils or band 
councils. 

Municipalities have two years from the date of enactment to complete

154

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

• Emergency Response

• Social Development

• Prevention Programming

• Risk Mitigation

155

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework
156

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

Emergency or incident  
response is the centre
of the safety & well-
being framework.

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

157

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

• Police
• Fire
• Paramedics
• Mental Health
• Family and Children 

Services
• Etc.

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

158

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

By introducing social 
development 
programs, a 
municipality reduces 
the need for 
emergency response 
to crime and social 
disorder.

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

159

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

• Access to 
employment 
opportunities

• Employment and 
job security

• Access to higher 
education

• Access to quality 
health care

.

Social
Development

160

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

By further, introducing 
preventative  
programming the 
need for incident 
response is reduced 
yet again.

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention

161

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

• What are the 
known risk factors?

• Who in the 
community is 
vulnerable to 
them?

• What protective 
factors can we 
install to protect 
those  who are at 
risk?.

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention

162

RETURN TO AGENDA

Presenter
Presentation Notes
IndividualFamily/peer groupsCommunitySociity



Safety & Well-Being Framework

Risk mitigation speaks 
to the systems and 
resources in place to 
address situations of 
acutely elevated risk to 
prevent anticipated 
harms

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention

Risk Mitigation

163

RETURN TO AGENDA



• Renfrew County 
Situational Table

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention

Risk Mitigation

Safety & Well-Being Framework
164

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention

Risk Mitigation

• Initial meeting April 
2017 – monthly 
meetings since.

• Currently 14 
partner agencies

165

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention

Source: MCSCS: Crime Prevention in Ontario

Evidence shows that social development approaches are cost effective and are 
effective at reducing crime and victimization. Research and current practices 
internationally, nationally and locally indicate that social development activities that 
target the risk factors of crime are the best way to address crime. 

It is important to know what risk factors exist within a community and implement 
the appropriate protective factors to mitigate harm.

166

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework

Planning Process

167

RETURN TO AGENDA



Safety & Well-Being Framework
Resourses

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention

Available through the MCSCS website under publications

168

RETURN TO AGENDA



Path to Future

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

Prevention
Champions – public figures who express their commitment to public safety and 
well-being planning and rally support from the public and community 
agencies/organizations.

Coordinator(s) – Should be someone from an area that has knowledge of or 
authority over Community safety and well-being planning, such as social services 
– with the key task of recruiting the appropriate agencies/organizations and 
individuals to become members of the advisory committee.

Advisory Body Members – should be reflective of the diverse make-up of the 
community and be the decision makers for their respective agency/organization.

169

RETURN TO AGENDA



Path to Future

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Social
Development

PreventionProposal

Completion of a county-wide action plan outlining specific strategies; risk-
focused mitigation, crime prevention and social development, in support of 
community safety and well-being.

Tailored to reflect local anomalies and adopted by municipalities 

170

RETURN TO AGENDA



Questions?

Social
Development

Prevention

171

RETURN TO AGENDA



Contacts

EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE

Prevention

Inspector Colin Slight
colin.slight@opp.ca

Staff Sergeant MaryAnn MacNeil
maryann.macneil@opp.ca

Renfrew Detachment
Detachment Commander

410 O’Brien Road,
Renfrew, ON,  K7V 3Z2

613-432-3211

172

RETURN TO AGENDA

mailto:colin.slight@opp.ca
mailto:maryann.macneil@opp.ca


Township Of Horton

Month No. of 
Permits

2019 Value 
of Permits

2018 Value 
of Permits

2017 Value 
of Permits

Renos/Add 
Comm/Res

 Garages/Storage 
Bldg Comm/Res

New 
Res

New 
Comm

Total SQ. 
FT

Stop Work 
Orders Issued

January $57,500 $0 0
February 4 $604,000 $0 $0 4 5,542 0

March $1,108,000 $394,500 0
April $288,000 $945,000 0
May $824,000 $125,000 0

June $1,977,000 $657,000 0
July $595,000 $447,000 0

August $690,800 $385,000 0
September $1,141,000 $1,782,000 0

October $330,300 $453,250 0
November $1,000 $387,000 0

December $45,000 $0 0
TOTALS 4 $604,000 $7,057,600 $5,575,750 4 0 0 0 5,542 0

FEBRUARY 2019 BUILDING REPORT

173

RETURN TO AGENDA



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 

BY-LAW NO. 2019-21 
 
 

A BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE THE 
AMMENDMENT OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

 
BEAUMEN WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS LTD. 

Hereinafter called the ‘Contractor’ 
 

AND 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON  
Hereinafter called the ‘Municipality’ 

 
 
WHEREAS Council of the Township of Horton passed Resolution #2018-205 to amend the 
existing Recycling Agreement, specifically Section 8.3 – Schedule of Prices Item 1 d) 
Recyclable Material Processing to reflect the increase to $0.26 price/unit/week effective 
June 1st, 2018 to December 31st, 2018; 
 
AND WHEREAS at the Regular Council Meeting on March 5th, 2019, Council agreed to 
continue the amended agreement for the 2019 year; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Horton ENACTS AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
1. That the Mayor and CAO/Clerk be authorized to execute the Amended portion of the 

agreement attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming a part of this by-law with 
Beaumen Waste Management Systems Ltd. 

 
2. That this by-law shall come into effect upon the passing thereof. 
 
 
 
Read a First and Second Time this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
Read a Third Time and Passed this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
 
   
MAYOR David M. Bennett  CAO/CLERK Hope Dillabough 
 

174

RETURN TO AGENDA



SCHEDULE ‘A’ 
 

 
SECTION 8.0 – RECYCLING COLLECTION – FORM TENDER 

SCHEDULE OF PRICES – TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 
 

PART A 
 
 

8.3 SCHEDULE OF PRICES – TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 
 
TABLE 8.3.1 – HORTON – MANDATORY CURBSIDE COLLECTION, PROCESSING AND 
MARKETING SERVICES 
 
Item 

# Item Description Unit 
C 

Est. 
Quantity 

#Weeks/ 
Year 

Times/ 
Week 

Price/Unit 
/Week 

Annual 
Amount 

1. d) Recyclable Material 
Processing 

Total 
Stops 1354 26 1 $0.26 $9,153.04 

 
 
 

175

RETURN TO AGENDA



THE CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 

BY-LAW NO 2019-22 
 

BEING A BY-LAW TO ESTABLISH TARIFF OF 
FEES FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON FOR 

SERVICES. 
 
WHEREAS Councils of local municipalities are empowered by Section 391 of the 
Municipal Act, R.S.O. 2001 to establish by-laws.   Without limiting sections 9, 10 
and 11, those sections authorize a municipality to impose fees or charges on 
persons, 

(a) for services or activities provided or done by or on behalf of it; 
(b) for costs payable by it for services or activities provided or done by or 
on behalf of any other municipality or any local board; and 
(c) for the use of its property including property under its control. 2006, c. 
32, Sched. A, s. 163 (1). 
 

AND WHEREAS Section 69 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended, 
provides that the Council of a Municipality may by by-law prescribe a tariff of fess 
for planning matters; 
 
AND WHEREAS Section 35 of the Municipal Act, R.S.O. 2001 permits a 
municipality to pass by-laws removing or restricting the common law right of 
passage by the public over a highway and the common law right of access to the 
highway by an owner of land abutting a highway; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Corporation of the Township of Horton deems it necessary 
and desirable to regulate the construction and alteration of entranceways, private 
roads, or other facilities that permit access to Township Roads and to provide for 
the issuing of permit related thereto; 
 
AND WHEREAS Part X, Section 100(4) of the Ontario Environmental Protection 
Act provides that a municipality designated by regulations has the right to 
compensation from the owner of a pollutant and the person having control of the 
pollutant for all reasonable cost and expense incurred in acting under subsection 
(1); 
 
AND WHEREAS the Corporation of the Township of Horton deems it desirable to 
adopt a schedule of Fees for inspections and other services provided by the Fire 
Department of the Municipality; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Horton 
deems it expedient to enact a by-law to establish a tariff of fees as follows: 

1) The fees and charges set out on the attached Schedules are 
hereby imposed and ratified. Set out as follows: 
 
Building and Septic Fees   Schedule “A” 

Waste Site Fees    Schedule “B” 

Planning Fees    Schedule “C” 

Draft Agreement for Planning  Schedule “D” 

Administration/Miscellaneous Fees Schedule “E” 

Recreation Fees    Schedule “F” 

Fire Department Fees   Schedule “G” 

Transportation Fees    Schedule “H” 
 

2)  All fees and charges set out in this by-law shall be payable prior to 
the provision of the service unless an agreement in writing is made 
to the contrary and approved by a municipal official. 

176

RETURN TO AGENDA



3)   In the event any fee or charge imposed herein remains unpaid after 
provision of the service or is otherwise in arrears, such fees or 
charges may be added to the Tax Roll for any real property in the 
municipality, the owner of which is responsible for paying the fee or 
charge and shall be collected in like manner as municipal taxes. 

4)   Council does hereby delegate to the CAO/Clerk and/or the Finance 
Manager of The Township of Horton, the authority to administer 
such fees and charges and approve such forms and procedures as 
may be required for the efficient administration of the fees and 
charges.  

5)  This By-law shall come into force and effective upon passing. 
 

THAT upon recommendation of the Treasurer and approval of Council, all Fees 
and Charges established in this By-law may be adjusted annually on the 31st of 
December in each year commencing on the 31st of December 2019, in 
accordance with Statistics Canada Consumer Price Index and rounded up to the 
nearest dollar in Schedules A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H and/or cents in Schedule A; 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, that all By-Laws or parts thereof, and all or any 
Resolutions of Council contrary thereto, or inconsistent herewith, be and the 
same are hereby repealed. 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, that this by-law comes into effect April 1, 
2019 unless otherwise stated. 

AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, that by-law 2018-49 be repealed. 

Read a First and Second Time this 19th day of March, 2019. 

Read a Third Time and Passed this 19th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
             

MAYOR David M. Bennett   CAO/Clerk Hope Dillabough

177

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 Schedule “A” to By-Law 2019-22 

BUILDING AND SEPTIC FEES 
(All permits must be paid for and in the owner’s possession within 30 days of being 

notified by the municipality or the permit may be revoked.) 

Type     Fee 

Minimum Fee     $   100.00 

Residential Building     .55/sq.ft. 

Farm Building    .20/sq. ft. min $100.00 

Decks     $   100.00 

Accessory Bldg/Garages     .40/sq.ft. 

Additions to Residential Buildings     .55/sq.ft. 

Mobile Home     .25/sq. ft. 

Alterations & Renovations     .55/sq. ft. 

Swimming Pool     $    100.00 

Commercial/Industrial Buildings/Additions   .40/sq.ft. 

Demolition     $    100.00 

Transmitter Tower – 30 feet and under   $ 2,000.00  
and include Windmill 

Transmitter Tower – over 30 feet   $ 5,000.00  
and include Windmill 
 
Solar Panel (With Council’s Approval)    Per Property Class 

Commencing Construction without a Permit  Twice Building Fee 

Outdoor Wood Burning Appliance     $     100.00 

Additional Inspection     $     100.00 

Additional Inspection after 4 Years of Permit Issued  $     400.00 

Occupancy Permit or Final Inspection     $     100.00 

Change of Use   Applicable Rate plus $200.00 

Plumbing & Repair    Included in fees above 

Consent Application Fees (septic comments)   $ 100.00/application 

Revision or Renewal of Permit     $ 100.00 

Cancellation of Permit  80% Refund at 
application stage 
60% Refund if 
Permit Issued 

Compliance Letter     $     100.00 

Class 2 (grey water)     $     300.00 

Class 3 (cess pool)     $     300.00 

Class 4 (leaching or filter bed)     $     400.00 

Class 5 (holding tank)     $     350.00 

Engineered System     $     350.00 

178

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
Schedule “B” to By-Law 2019-22 

WASTE SITE FEES 
(Vehicles are to be assessed by the Attendants at the Landfill Site, 
and tipping fees must be paid prior to dumping load.) 

Type     Fee 

Special Opening of Site     $    40.00 

(Accompanied by an attendant – minimum 1-hour charge) 
 
Garbage Tags (sold at office)     $      2.00 

Garbage Bags taken to Landfill Site    $ 2.00/bag or attach 
Garbage Tag purchased at office 

 
Metal – White Goods (Freon must be removed   No charge 
and Fridge must be tagged)  
 
Half-Ton Vehicle, or Half-Ton Trailer or Passenger Van $     20.00 

Half-Ton Vehicle or Passenger Van with Half-Ton Trailer $     40.00 

One-Ton Vehicle     $     40.00 

Tandem Axle Dump Trucks     $ 14.00/cubic meter  

Tri-Axle Dump Trucks     $ 14.00/cubic meter 

Tractor Trailer Trucks     $ 14.00/cubic meter 

Roll-Off Bins     $ 14.00/cubic meter 

Garbage Packer Load – (half load or more)   $   300.00 

Garbage Packer Load – (half load or less)   $   150.00 

Soil Contaminated with Fuel Oil     $ 50.00/cubic meter 

Construction/Demolition/Fire Clean Up - Unsorted                  $ 300.00 per load 
plus $15.00/cubic 
meter 

 
Construction and Demolition - Separated   $ 14.00/cubic meter 

Construction and Demolition – Mechanically Ground  $ 12.00/cubic meter 

Passenger Tire up to 16”  Free or $3.00 with 
attached rim 

Tires 17” to 24.5”  Free or $9.00 with 
attached rim 

Tires Over 24.5”  Free or $25.00 with 
attached rim 

Over 6’  Free or $25.00 with 
attached rim 

Blue Box - Large  $       6.00 

Restocking Fee (Purchases of more than 5 items)  15% 
 
 
 
 

 
 

179

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 Schedule “C” to By-Law 2019-22 

PLANNING FEES 

Type     Fee 

Zoning Amendment Application  $   200.00 plus 
County of Renfrew 
Application fee 

Official Plan Amendment Application  $   200.00 plus 
County of Renfrew 
Application fee 

Minor Variance Application     $   450.00 

Site Plan Control Application     $   500.00 

Site Plan Control Offences     $ 1,000.00 per  
     incident 

Subdivision Development Application  $1,000.00 with a 
$5,000.00 deposit 
for Professional 
Cost Recovery (up 
to the agreement 
stage) 

Planner – Hourly Rate     Cost Recovery 

Lawyer – Hourly Rate     Cost Recovery 

Engineer – Hourly Rate     Cost Recovery 

Engineering Technician – Hourly Rate     Cost Recovery 

Planning Technician – Hourly Rate     Cost Recovery 

Secretary – Hourly Rate     Cost Recovery 

Special Council Meeting     $   350.00 

Zoning Compliance     $     60.00 

Planning Comment – Hourly Rate     $     50.00 

Subdivision Compliance Report     $     50.00 

Zoning By-law Text and Schedules     $     50.00 

Sale of Land    Appraisal plus costs. 

Severance Application     $   200.00 

Agreement for Draft Plan of Subdivision, Certain Severance Applications, 
Zoning By-law Amendments on Specific Questions or Concerns raised by 
the Owners is Schedule “D” to By-law 2019-22. 

 
 
 
 

180

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 Schedule “D” to By-Law 2019-22 

AGREEMENT FOR DRAFT PLAN OF SUBDIVIDISION/CERTAIN SEVERANCE  
APPLICATIONS/ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENTS/CERTAIN OMB HEARINGS 
AND ON SPECIFIC QUESTIONS OR CONCERNS RAISED BY THE OWNERS 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT MADE in duplicate this day of   __, 20  .  
 
B E T W E E N:  
 
  ______________________________________________ 
 
    Hereinafter called the "OWNERS" 
 
       OF THE FIRST PART 
A N D: 
 
  THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 
    Hereinafter called the "CORPORATION" 
 
       OF THE SECOND PART 
 
WHEREAS the Owners are seeking to obtain approval for a      
 
     with the Corporation: 
 
AND WHEREAS in order to undertake such review it will be necessary for the 
Corporation to employ the services of its Lawyer, Planner, Engineer, and 
Township personnel, and the Owners have agreed to reimburse the Corporation 
for the fees incurred for retaining such professional advice whether or not such 
proposal is proceeded with. 
 
NOW THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH that in consideration of the premises 
and the sum of ONE ($1.00) DOLLAR now paid by the Corporation to the 
Owners, the Owners hereby covenant and agree with the Corporation that 
notwithstanding whether the above noted proposal receives approval and is 
proceeded with, the Owners shall pay to the Corporation an amount equal to all 
Planning, Engineering and Legal Fees, and all administrative costs and 
disbursements incurred by the Corporation for reviewing the proposal, for advice 
with regard to the proposal, for the preparation of any agreements in connection 
therewith and for the supervision of any part of the site to which to proposal 
relates:  and the Owners shall deposit with the Corporation the sum of   
     prior to the signing of this Agreement on account of 
such fees and disbursements.  Copies of the account of such fees and 
disbursement shall be delivered to the Owners forthwith upon receipt of such 
accounts from the Corporation's Planners, Engineers and Solicitors.  Said 
amount will be deducted from the deposit.  The Owners agree that there will be 
no interest paid on account of any deposit held by the Corporation under this 
agreement. 
 
When the total professional fees and disbursements equal the deposit, all work of 
the Township shall stop on the project until the Owner deposits a further  
    to cover additional fees and disbursements.   The deposit 
shall thereafter be increased in increments of      until the 
decision is final or the work is completed as the case may be.  The Owner agrees 
to have on deposit upon registration of any Plan of Subdivision, Five Thousand 
Dollars ($5,000.00) to cover engineering, legal and planning fees which may 
accrue after such registration. 

181

RETURN TO AGENDA



The Owners and/or the Corporation may stop work on the proposal at any time 
by notifying the Corporation and/or the Owners in writing to this effect.  In the 
event that work is stopped by the Owners and/or the Corporation, the Owners 
are responsible for all fees and expenses incurred to the date at which written 
notice was given. 
 
When the proposal has been reviewed and completed or rejected or stopped and 
all such accounts rendered, the Corporation shall refund to the Owners the 
remainder of the deposit.  
 
THIS AGREEMENT shall ensure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 
Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
THE AGREEMENT shall not derogate from any requirements, financial or 
otherwise, established by agreements pursuant to Section 41, 51 or 53 of the 
Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P. 13. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has hereunto affixed its Corporate 
seal duly attested to by the hands of its proper signing officers duly authorize in 
that behalf.  The Owners have hereunto affixed its Corporate seal duly attested 
to the hands of its proper signing officers duly authorized in that behalf. 
 
SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED ) 
      ) 
      )      
      ) per: 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) THE CORPORATION OF THE 
      ) TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
      ) 
      )      
      ) MAYOR 
      ) 
      )      
      ) CAO/CLERK 
 
 
 

182

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 Schedule “E” to By-Law 2019-22 

ADMINISTRATION FEES 
 

Type     Fee 

Septic Search     $    50.00 

Photocopy     $    .25/copy 

Tax Certificate     $    35.00 

Duplicate Tax Receipt or Tax Bill     $      5.00 

Map - County     $      5.00 (plus HST) 

Map - Township     $    10.00 (plus HST) 

Request for Information - Application     $      5.00 (plus HST) 

Request for Information – Search Time    $ 15.00/¼ hour (plus HST) 

Request for Information – Record Preparation  $ 15.00/¼ hour (plus HST) 

Integrity Commissioner Review    $ 150 per grievance, 50%,  
(Staff No Charge)    returned if successful 
 
Lottery License     3% of prize value 
(Valley Heritage Radio fees waived in lieu of free Horton Corner Advertising) 
 
Facsimile – Transmit     $      2.00 (plus HST) 

Facsimile – Receive     $      2.00 (plus HST) 

Admin Fee under Line Fences Act            $ 200.00 (plus HST) plus a  
            $ 300.00 deposit 
 
Returned Payment Charge     $    25.00 (plus HST) 

Township Flag     $    45.00 (plus HST) 

Township Golf Shirt     $    25.00 (plus HST) 

Township Coffee Mug  $ 6 each of 2 for 
$10 (plus HST) 

Tax Sale Tender Package     $    25.00 (plus HST) 

Tax Sale Process       $  150.00 (plus HST) plus costs 

CAO/Clerk    Cost Recovery (plus HST) 

Treasurer/Tax Collector    Cost Recovery (plus HST) 

Deputy Clerk    Cost Recovery (plus HST) 

Clerk Receptionist    Cost Recovery (plus HST) 

Custodial    Cost Recovery (plus HST) 

Dog Licenses – Before March 31st    $ 20.00 first dog 
         $ 25.00 second dog 

Dog Licenses – After March 31st     $ 25.00 first dog 
         $ 30.00 second dog 

Replacement Tag       $      5.00 

Kennell License $    60.00 plus 
$5.00 tag per dog 

 
Civic Address Number Fee $     75.00 

183

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 Schedule “F” to By-Law 2019-22 

RECREATION FEES 
Community Hall Rental     Fee 
Hourly Rental        $  25.00 (plus HST) 
Half Day (2 to 4 hours; ends by 5 pm)     $ 100.00 (plus HST) 
Half Day Conference Room (2 to 4 hours; ends by 5 pm)   $   75.00 (plus HST) 
Full Day (5 to 8 hours; ends by 5 pm)     $ 150.00 (plus HST) 
Full Day Conference Room (5 to 8 hours; ends by 5 pm)   $ 125.00 (plus HST) 
Funeral Reception       $ 100.00 (plus HST) 
Fundraising - Township       No Charge 
Evening (after 6 pm)       $ 225.00 (plus HST) 
Castleford/Balsam Hill/Lochwinnoch Women’s Inst’s.   $  100.00 (plus HST) 
Township of Horton Church Group     One free rental per year 
Decoration Rental (evening prior to rental, booked after Jan 1 2018) $   40.00 (plus HST)  
Community Hall Fees     Fee 
Use of Kitchen (Includes Stove but Not Dishwasher)   $  100.00 (plus HST) 
Dish Rental               $  2.50 per place setting (plus HST) 
Corkage Fee        $   4.00/bottle (plus HST) 
Alcohol – (Beer/Liquor per unit)      $ 4.50 (includes HST) 
Alcohol – (Cooler/Wine/Craft Beef per unit)    $ 5.50 (includes HST) 
Alcohol – (Other Specialty Drinks)     $ 6.00 (includes HST) 
Pop/Water (per unit)       $  1.00 (includes HST) 
Damage/Cleaning Deposit (returned if hall is OK after)  $ 500.00 (Prepaid VISA) 
Event Advertising – Community Board $    25.00 (plus HST) 
Ice Rental     Fee 
Adult Shinny Season Pass or Season Pass      $  25.00/person (plus HST) 

Shinny Hockey      $  2.00/person (includes HST) 

Hourly Ice Rental     $  65.00 (plus HST) 

Family Skate/Public Skating     Donation  

Broomball                $  35.00/person (plus HST) 

Recreational Ice Hockey (per person/per season)    $100.00 Adult is plus HST 

Rink Board Advertising (sign owner provides)     $500.00 setup (plus HST) 
          $250.00 annual after (plus HST) 
Other Recreation Fees     Fee 
Boat Launch (Season Pass)      $  45.00 Non Resident 
(Residents are allowed two free launches per season in order 
to launch and pick up at beginning and end of season.)   $  35.00 Resident 
Boat Launch (Day Pass)      $    8.00 
(All boat launch passes will be plus HST effective January 1, 2019) 
Boat Launch – Fine If No Pass      $  30.00 

Euchre (per person/per evening)     $    4.00 (includes HST) 
Dance Admission       $  10.00 (includes HST) 

Volleyball (per person)       $  30.00 (plus HST) 
Aerobics/Zumba/Fitness/Shuffle Board/Individual Sports (per person/class) $ 5.00 (plus HST) 

Pickle Ball   $3.00/Class $20.00/Season (Punch Card System) (plus HST) 
Flag Football        $  30.00 
Advertising in Horton Corner (Private Events Only)           Cost Recovery (plus HST) 
Dance Lessons Rate as per annual agreement 
Soccer Registration $60.00/person 
Catering Fees Established by Committee - Varied (plus HST) 

Fundraising Events                                     Established by Committee – Varied (meals plus HST) 

Horton Hoedown Established by Committee (plus HST) 

 
 

184

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 Schedule “G” to By-Law 2019-22 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES 

Item 
Column 1 

Short Form Wording 

Column 2 

Provision creating 

or defining offence 

Column 3 

Set fine 

1 Set, Maintain or allow an Open Air Fire during Fire Season 2.1 (a) $450.00 

2 Set, Maintain or allow an Open Air Fire without a Permit 2.1 (b) $450.00 

3 Burn Prohibited Materials 2.1 (c) $250.00 

4 Impede visibility public thoroughfare 2.1 (d) $250.00 

5 Set or maintain Open Air Fire R1 Zone 2.1 (e) (i) $250.00 

6 Set or maintain Open Air Fire MHP Zone 2.1 (e) (i) $250.00 

7 Set or maintain Open Air Fire LSR Zone 2.1 (e) (i) $250.00 

8 Set or maintain an oversize Open Air Fire 2.1 (e) (ii) $250.00 

9 Set or maintain an Open Air Fire within 10 meters of a building or wooded 
area 

2.1 (e)(iii) $250.00 

10 Set or maintain an Open Air Fire within 5 meters of flammable material 2.1 (e)(iv) $250.00 

11 Burn restricted materials, no special permission 2.1 (f) $450.00 

12 Burn grass or leaf litter  2.2  $250.00 

13 Burn Household Waste or Prohibited Materials in a Burn Barrel or 
Incinerator 

2.3 $250.00 

14 Burn materials in a Burn Barrel or Incinerator in Fire Season 2.3 (a) $250.00 

15 Burn Household Waste or Prohibited Materials in an Outdoor Furnace 2.4 (a) $450.00 

16 Set or maintain Open Air Fire underage supervision 3.1 (a) $250.00 

17 Set or maintain Open Air Fire no fire control measures on site 3.1 (b) $250.00 

18 Set or maintain Open Air Fire non approved times 3.1 (c) $250.00 

19 Set or maintain Open Air Fire adverse burning conditions 3.1 (d) $250.00 

20 Campfire not set or maintained in an Approved Pit  3.2 $250.00 

21 Set or maintain an Open Air Fire during a level 1 (yellow rating) fire ban 4.2  $450.00 

22 Set or maintain an Open Air Fire during a level 2 (red rating) fire ban 4.3 (a) $450.00 

23 Set, maintain or allow any Campfires during a level 2 (red rating) fire ban 4.3 (b) $450.00 

24 
Set, maintain or allow any fire in any Burn Barrel or Incinerator during a 

level 2 (red rating) fire ban. 
4.3 (c) $450.00 

185

RETURN TO AGENDA



 
Schedule of Fees 

1. Fees to respond to and investigate a complaint in regard to a possible violation under 
Section 2.0 about Open Air Fire/Bonfire  
 

a. Fee of $75.00 per response payable by the permit holder or person 
setting, maintaining or allowing such fire to be lit if the complaint is 
substantiated 
 

b.   Fee of $75.00 per response payable by the complainant if the        
complaint is not substantiated 
 

(i) Fee may be waived at the discretion of the investigator if in 
their opinion the complaint was reasonable and made in 
good faith but investigation showed no violation under any 
section of this by-law had occurred. 

2. Cost Recovery Fees: 
a. Dispatch of Fire-fighters - (to be calculated at $25 per hour for a 

minimum of 2 hours per fire fighter responding to the scene and 
calculated on one half hour increments thereafter). 
 

b. Dispatch of Fire Response vehicles actively involved in an emergency 
response. - First hour (or part thereof) $450.00 per vehicle, each 
additional half hour $225.00 per vehicle. 
 

c. Actual costs incurred by the Township for additional firefighting 
support from other outside agencies.  
 

d.   Actual costs incurred by the Township to replace consumables.  

e.   A 15% Administration charge shall be added to the Cost Recovery 
Fees calculated in clauses 2 a., 2 b., 2 c. and 2 d. set out above.  

 
 
 
 

186

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 Schedule “H” to By-Law 2019-22 

 
TRANSPORTATION FEES 

 

All operator and cost recovery rates are subject to the following: 

1. “Regular Hours of Work” – “Regular Hours of Work” shall mean Monday to 
Friday 7:00 am to 3:30 pm excluding Statutory Holidays as stated in 
Township Policy.  Summer hours may apply. 
 

2. “Outside Regular Hours” – “Outside Regular Hours” of work shall mean any 
hours worked beyond those hours defined as Regular Hours of Work.  
Regular Hours of Works rate is one and half times the regular rate. 
 

3. “Emergency Rate” – “Emergency” means a serious, unexpected, or 
unforeseen combination of circumstances and often dangerous situation 
requiring immediate action, need for assistance or relief.  Emergency rate is 
three times the regular rate. 

 

Note:  All cost recovery rates below are deemed to be at the regular hours 
of work rate unless outside regular hours or emergency rates apply. 
 
Type     Fee 

Entrance Permits (One Time Inspection)    $   150.00 
(Security Deposit of $350, Increase to $750.00 If a Culvert is Required, Deposit 
Returned After Final Inspection) 
 
Additional Inspections for Entrance Permits   $    100.00 

Tile Drain and Utility Road Crossing Permit $ 500.00 deposit plus 
Fees to Recover 
Reasonable Costs of the 
Municipality for works.  

 
Sale of Used Culverts/Work Requests etc.   Cost Recovery 

Private Road & Driveway Grading    As Per Policy T-01 
 
Note:  All municipal equipment shall be operated by municipal employees 
at the unit rate plus cost recovery rates stated below. 
 
Excavator  $     82.00/hr plus operator 

Grader       $     87.00/hr plus operator 

Half Ton        $     28.00/hr plus operator 

Loader/Backhoe      $     50.00/hr plus operator 

Tandem Axle Dump Truck     $     80.00/hr plus operator 

Water Truck       $     80.00/hr plus operator 

Public Works Manager      Cost Recovery 

Public Works Superintendent     Cost Recovery 

Machine Operator       Cost Recovery 

Labourer        Cost Recovery 

Chipper Rental      $     45.50/hr plus operator 

 

187

RETURN TO AGENDA



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 
 

BY-LAW NO. 2019-23 
 

A BY-LAW TO CONFIRM PROCEEDINGS OF  
THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HORTON 

AT THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING HELD MARCH 19TH, 2019 
 
WHEREAS Subsection 5(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25, as 
amended, provides that the powers of a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its 
Council; 
 
AND WHEREAS Subsection 5(3) of the said Municipal Act provides that the powers of 
every Council are to be exercised by by-law; 
 
AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient and desirable that the proceedings of the Council 
of the Corporation of the Horton at this meeting be confirmed and adopted by by-law; 
 
THEREFORE the Council of the Township of Horton enacts as follows: 
 

1. That the actions of the Council at the meeting held on the 19th day of March, 2019 
and in respect of each motion, resolution and other action passed and taken by the 
Council at its said meetings, is, except where the prior approval of the Ontario 
Municipal Board or other body is required, hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed as 
if all such proceedings were expressly embodied in this by-law.  

 
2. That the Head of Council and proper officers of the Corporation of the Township of 

Horton are hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give effect to 
the said action or to obtain appropriate approvals where required, except where 
otherwise provided, and to affix the Corporate Seal of the Corporation of the 
Township of Horton to all such documents.  

 
3. That this By-Law shall come into force and take effect upon the passing thereof.  

 
 
READ a first and second time this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
READ a third time and passed this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
   
MAYOR David M. Bennett  CAO/CLERK Hope Dillabough 
 
 
 
 

188

RETURN TO AGENDA


	RPT-BUILDING- FEBRUARY 2019.pdf
	Sheet1

	2019-22 USER FEES & CHARGES.pdf
	2. Cost Recovery Fees:
	2. Cost Recovery Fees:

	2019-23 Confirming By-Law.pdf
	A BY-LAW TO CONFIRM PROCEEDINGS OF
	A BY-LAW TO CONFIRM PROCEEDINGS OF
	AND WHEREAS Subsection 5(3) of the said Municipal Act provides that the powers of every Council are to be exercised by by-law;
	AND WHEREAS Subsection 5(3) of the said Municipal Act provides that the powers of every Council are to be exercised by by-law;


	OPP Presentation Renfrew Detachment Introduction (Horton).pdf
	�Introduction to Renfrew Detachment�� ��
	Objectives
	Detachment Area & Structure
	Detachment Area & Structure
	Detachment Area & Structure
	OPP Strategic Plan
	OPP Strategic Plan
	Renfrew Detachment Action Plan
	Renfrew Detachment Action Plan
	Questions?
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	OPP Billing Model
	Questions?
	Community Policing
	Community Policing
	Slide Number 28
	�
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	�
	Police Services Act
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework
	Safety & Well-Being Framework�Resourses
	Path to Future
	Path to Future
	Questions?
	Contacts




